
Licensing Sub-Committee

Friday 11 August 2017
10.00 am

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02C - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Membership Reserves

Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Sandra Rhule

Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Access to information
You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports.
Babysitting/Carers allowances
If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, 
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this 
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the 
meeting.
Access
The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below.
Contact: Andrew Weir on 020 7525 7222 or email: andrew.weir@southwark.gov.uk   

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting
Eleanor Kelly
Chief Executive
Date: 1 August 2017

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx


Licensing Sub-Committee
Friday 11 August 2017

10.00 am
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02C - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

Order of Business

Item No. Title Page No.

PART A - OPEN BUSINESS

1. ELECTION OF THE CHAIR

To elect a chair for the sub-committee. 

2. APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence.

3. CONFIRMATION OF VOTING MEMBERS

A representative of each political group will confirm the voting members of 
the committee.

4. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR 
DEEMS URGENT

In special circumstances, an item of business may be added to an agenda 
within five clear days of the meeting.

5. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

Members to declare any interests and dispensation in respect of any item 
of business to be considered at this meeting.

6. LICENSING ACT 2003: TRANSFER APPLICATION ADAM NEWS, 6 
COLDHARBOUR LANE, LONDON SE5 9PR

1 - 91

ANY OTHER OPEN BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF THE 
MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.



Item No. Title Page No.

PART B - CLOSED BUSINESS

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the 
sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports 
revealing exempt information:

“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, Access to 
Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.”

ANY OTHER CLOSED BUSINESS AS NOTIFIED AT THE START OF 
THE MEETING AND ACCEPTED BY THE CHAIR AS URGENT.

Date:  1 August 2017



Item No. 
6.

Classification: 
Open

Date:
11 August 2017

Meeting name: 
Licensing Sub-Committee

Report Title Licensing Act 2003 – Transfer Application Adam 
News, 6 Coldharbour Lane, London SE5 9PR 

Ward(s) or groups affected: Camberwell Green Ward

From: Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the licensing sub-committee considers an application made by Nawaz 
Muhammad to transfer a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect 
of the premises known as Adam News, 6 Coldharbour Lane, London, SE5 9PR.

Notes:

2. This is an application to transfer the premises licence, submitted under Section 42 
of the Licensing Act 2003. The application is subject to an objection notice from the 
Metropolitan Police Service and is therefore referred to the sub-committee for 
determination.

3. Paragraphs 12 to 15 of this report provide a summary of the application under 
consideration by the sub-committee. A copy of the full application is attached as 
Appendix A.

4. Paragraphs 25 to 34 of this report deals with the police objection notice received to 
the transfer application. A copy of the relevant police objection notice is attached 
as Appendix B.

5. A copy of the council’s approved procedure for hearings of the sub-committee in 
relation to an application made under the Licensing Act 2003, along with a copy of 
the hearing regulations, has been circulated to all parties to the meeting. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Licensing Act 2003

6. The Licensing Act 2003 received Royal Assent on 10 July 2003. The Act provides 
a new licensing regime for:

 The sale of and supply of alcohol
 The provision of regulated entertainment
 The provision of late night refreshment.

7. Within Southwark, the licensing responsibility is wholly administered by this council.

1
Agenda Item 6



8. The Act requires the licensing authority to carry out its functions under the Act with 
a view to promoting the four stated licensing objectives. These are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder
 The promotion of public safety
 The prevention of nuisance
 The protection of children from harm.

9. In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard 
to:

 The Act itself
 The Guidance to the act issued under Section 182 of the Act
 Secondary regulations issued under the Act
 The licensing authority’s own Statement of Licensing Policy
 The application, including the operating schedule submitted as part of the 

application
 Relevant representations.

10. The application to transfer a premises licence involves the provision of all relevant 
information required under the Act to the licensing authority. If the licensing 
authority receives a police objection notice that is not withdrawn, it must hold a 
hearing to consider the objection notice (unless all parties agree that this is 
unnecessary). 

11. The police may submit an objection notice to an application to transfer a premises 
licence when relevant to the promotion of the four licensing objectives.

KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION

Premises licence transfer

12. A premises licence transfer application was received on 30 June 2017 to transfer 
the premises licence holder of Adam News to specify Nawaz Muhammad as the 
new premises licence holder. 

13. On 30 June 2017 consents were received from the existing premises licence 
holder to transfer the premises licence for Adam News to Nawaz Muhammad.

14. The effect of an application to transfer a premises licence is that it will have 
immediate interim effect unless an objection is received from the police.

15. A copy of this application is attached as Appendix A.

Premises history

16. A premises licence was issued in respect of the premises on 2 June 2006. 

2



17. On the 2 July 2016 a transfer application was received to transfer the premises 
licence in addition there was a change of designated premises supervisor.  These 
applications were granted 22 June 2016.

18. On 8 December 2016 Trading Standards and the Metropolitan Police carried out a 
joint visit as part of Southwark’s programme of night-time economy visits.  Multiple 
breaches of the premises licence were found at the premises. In addition, a large 
quantity of ‘duty-evaded’ product was seized by Trading Standards.  

19. The review application was submitted in respect of the prevention of crime and 
disorder and public safety licensing objectives.  A copy of the review application is 
attached as Appendix D.

20. The licence was revoked at licensing sub–committee on the 15 June 2017. A copy 
of the licensing sub committee decision is attached as Appendix E.

The police objection 

21. The police upon receipt of the application to transfer the premises licence holder to 
Nawaz Muhammad was submitted an objection notice on 13 July 2017.

22. The police state the above premises was subject of an application for a review of 
the premises licence under the licensing act 2003. On Thursday the 15 June 2017 
the licensing sub-committee heard evidence from the responsible authorities 
regarding a catalogue of breaches of the premises licence, and evidence of a 
number of criminal offences. The recommendation from all responsible authorities 
involved was that the premises licence be revoked. The licensing sub committee 
took the decision to revoke the premises licence. The premises licence holder has 
appealed this decision.

23. On the 30 June 2017 the police state that an application was received from Mr 
Nawaz Muhammad to transfer the above premises licence. Under the licensing act 
2003 an application to transfer the premises licence can become effective 
immediately. In addition an application to vary the premises licence to specify Mr 
Muhammad as the designated premises supervisor was also received.

24. The police state on this occasion they were made aware that a visit was made to 
the premises on the 11 July 2017, 11-days after the transfer took effect. The 
purpose of this visit was to conduct a licensing induction with the new premises 
licence holder Mr Muhammad.

25. The police state prior to this visit Mr Muhammed and been asked to ensure he had 
a copy of the lease agreement, and any other transfer documents which would 
indicate that he had legitimate control of the premises. This documentation was not 
forthcoming during the visit, Mr Muhammad stated that his solicitors were dealing 
with this matter and no lease had been signed yet.

26. Also present during this visit and induction meeting was the owner of the premises 
who had been witnessed working behind the counter of the shop.  On questioning, 
the owner of the premises stated that he worked at the premises for free. He was 

3



then asked why he would work for free in a shop that he owns but rents out to Mr 
Muhammed.

27. The police state that they are of the opinion that Mr Muhammed does not at this 
time have legitimate control of the premises, there is no signed lease agreement in 
place and as yet no further documentation to indicate that this would be the case.

28. Additionally the police state at the conclusion of the meeting, a licensing officer 
from Southwark Council noticed that a number of cans of Zubr lager displayed for 
sale. The information displayed on the cans was not English. This is a clear breach 
of the food labelling regulations as explained in more detail in the attached warning 
letter sent to Mr Muhammad. This in my opinion demonstrates disregard for 
licensing objectives and indicates that Mr Muhammed is not an appropriate person 
to take on this premises licence.

29. The police state that it is their opinion there are sufficient exceptional 
circumstances for us to object to the transfer of this premises licence, the same 
evidence is appropriate to object to the application to vary the premises licence to 
specify Mr Muhammed as the designated premises supervisor.

30. The Police have called a licensing officer as a witness to support their objections to 
the Transfer licensing application. A witness statement has been provided by the 
licensing officer which is detailed at Appendix F. 

Consideration by the sub-committee

31. It has not been possible to reach a negotiated outcome of this matter and the sub-
committee is asked to consider whether the police objection notice is upheld under 
the necessity to promote the licensing objective of crime and disorder and refuse 
the application to transfer.

The local area

32. A map of the local area is attached as Appendix H. There are a number of licenced 
premises in the local area namely:

 Art Deli Ltd. – 16a Cold harbour Lane, SE5 9PR:
The sale of alcohol to be consumed both on and off the premises - 
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 23:00 
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30

The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Saturday from 23:00 23:30

 Indiaah Restaurant – 59 Denmark Hill, SE5 8RS:
The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises
Monday to Saturday 11:00 to 00:00 (midnight)
Sunday 12:00 to 23:30 

The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Saturday 23:00 00:30 (the following day)

4



Sunday 23:00 to 00:00 (midnight)

 Pizza Hut – 57 Denmark Hill, SE5 8RS:
The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Sunday 23:00 00:30 (the following day)

 Chicken Express – 53 Denmark Hill, SE5 8RS:
The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Sunday 23:00 to 01:00 (the following day)

 Joiners Arms – 35 Denmark Hill, SE5 8RS:
The sale of alcohol to be consumed both on and off the premises - 
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 00:00 (midnight) 
Friday and Saturday 10:00 to 01:00 (the following day)

The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded music 
(indoors)
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 00:00 (midnight) 
Friday and Saturday 10:00 to 01:00 (the following day)

The provision of regulated entertainment in the form of recorded live 
(indoors)

Friday and Saturday 20:00 to 01:00 (the following day)

 Pesh Flowers – 31 Denmark Hill, SE5 8RS:
The sale of alcohol to be consumed off the premises - 
Monday to Saturday 08:00 to 023:00 
Sunday 10:00 to 22:30

 Ginseng Noodle Bar – 4 Coldharbour Lane, SE5 9PR

The sale of alcohol to be consumed on the premises
Monday to Saturday 11:00 to 00:30 (the following day)
Sunday 12:00 to 23:30

The provision of late night refreshment (indoors)
Monday to Saturday 23:00 to 00:00 (midnight)
Sunday 23:00 to 23:30

Community impact statement

33. Members are advised that under the Act, the only matter to which consideration 
may be given in this instance is the pursuit of the crime and disorder objective.

34. Each application is required by law to be considered upon its own individual merits 
with all relevant matters taken into account.

5



Southwark council statement of licensing policy

35. Council assembly approved Southwark’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2011-14 
on 12 October 2011. Sections of the statement that are considered to be of 
particular relevance to this application are:

       Section 3 which sets out the purpose and scope of the policy and reinforces 
the four licensing objectives

       Section 5 which sets out the council’s approach with regard to the imposition 
of conditions including mandatory conditions to be attached to the licence

       Section 6 which details other relevant council and government policies, 
strategies, responsibilities and guidance, including the relevant articles under 
the Human Rights Act 1998

       Section 7 which provides general guidance on dealing with crime and 
disorder and deals with licensing hours

       Section 8 which provides general guidance on ensuring public safety 
including safe capacities

       Section 9 which provides general guidance on the prevention of nuisance

       Section 10 which provides general guidance on the protection of children 
from harm.

36. The purpose of Southwark’s statement of licensing policy is to make clear to 
applicants what considerations will be taken into account when determining 
applications and should act as a guide to the sub-committee when considering the 
applications. However, the sub-committee must always consider each application 
on its own merits and allow exceptions to the normal policy where these are 
justified by the circumstances of the application.

Resource implications

37. A fee of £23.00 has been paid by the applicant in respect of this application being 
the statutory fee payable for the transfer of a premises licence. 

Consultations

38. Consultation has been carried out on this application in accordance with the 
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS

Director of Law and Democracy  

39. The sub-committee is asked to determine the application for the transfer of a 
premises licence under Section 42 of the Licensing Act 2003.

6



40. The principles which sub-committee members must apply are set out below.

Principles for making the determination

41. The general principle is that applications for the transfer of a premises licence 
must be granted unless a police objection notice is received.  This is subject to the 
proviso that the applicant has complied with regulations in submitting the 
application.

42. An application to transfer a premises licence under section 42 shall be in the form 
and shall contain the information set out in the application and accompanied by the 
prescribed fee.

43. If a relevant police objection notice is received then the sub-committee must have 
regard to them, in determining whether it is necessary for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

Reasons

44. If the sub-committee determines that it is necessary to refuse the application to 
transfer the premises licence, it must give reasons for its decision.

Hearing procedures

45. Subject to the licensing hearing regulations, the licensing sub-committee may 
determine its own procedures. Key elements of the regulations are that:

 The hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority.  Cross- 
examination shall not be permitted unless the authority considered that it is 
required for it to consider the representations.

 Members of the authority are free to ask any question of any party or other 
person appearing at the hearing.

 The committee must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in 
which to exercise their rights to:

o Address the authority
o If given permission by the committee, question any other party
o In response to a point which the authority has given notice it will require 

clarification, give further information in support of their application.

 The committee shall disregard any information given by a party which is not 
relevant to the particular application before the committee and the licensing 
objectives.

 The hearing shall be in public, although the committee may exclude the 
public from all or part of a hearing where it considers that the public interest in 

7



doing so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the 
hearing, taking place in private.

 In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority 
may take into account documentary or other information produced by a party 
in support of their application, representations or notice (as applicable) either 
before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.

46. This matter relates to the determination of an application for a premises licence 
under section 42 of the Licensing Act 2003. Regulation 26(1) (a) requires the sub-
committee to make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

Council’s multiple roles and the role of the licensing sub-committee

47. Members should note that the licensing sub-committee is meeting on this occasion 
solely to perform the role of licensing authority.  The sub-committee sits in quasi-
judicial capacity, and must act impartially.  It must offer a fair and unbiased hearing 
of the application.   In this case, members should disregard the council’s broader 
policy objectives and role as statutory authority in other contexts.  Members must 
direct themselves to making a determination solely based upon the licensing law, 
guidance and the council’s statement of licensing policy.

48. As a quasi-judicial body the licensing sub-committee is required to consider the 
application on its merits.  The sub-committee must take into account only relevant 
factors, and ignore irrelevant factors.  The decision must be based on evidence, 
that is to say material, which tends logically to show the existence or non-existence 
of relevant facts, or the likelihood or unlikelihood of the occurrence of some future 
event, the occurrence of which would be relevant.  The licensing sub-committee 
must give fair consideration to the contentions of all persons entitled to make 
representations to them.

49. The licensing sub-committee is entitled to consider events outside of the premises 
if they are relevant, i.e. are properly attributable to the premises being open.  The 
proprietors do not have to be personally responsible for the incidents for the same 
to be relevant.  However, if such events are not properly attributable to the 
premises being open, then the evidence is not relevant and should be excluded.   
Guidance is that the licensing authority will primarily focus on the direct impact of 
the activities taking place at the licensed premises on members of the public, 
living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area concerned.

50. Members will be aware of the council’s code of conduct which requires them to 
declare personal and prejudicial interests.  The code applies to members when 
considering licensing applications.  In addition, as a quasi-judicial body, members 
are required to avoid both actual bias, and the appearance of bias.

51. The sub-committee can only consider matters within the application that have been 
raised through the objection notice submitted by the police. This will be decided on 
a case to case basis.

52. Under the Human Rights Act 1998, the sub-committee needs to consider the 
balance between the rights of the applicant and those making objection to the 

8



application when making their decision. The sub-committee has a duty under 
section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 when making its decision to do all it can to 
prevent crime and disorder in the borough.

53. All interested parties have the right to appeal the decision of the sub-committee to 
the magistrates’ court within a period of 21 days beginning with the day on which 
the applicant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision to be appealed 
against.

Guidance

54. Members are required to have regard to the Home Office revised guidance in 
carrying out the functions of licensing authority. However, guidance does not cover 
every possible situation, so long as the guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood, members may depart from it if they have reason to do so. Full reasons 
must be given if this is the case.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background papers Held At Contact
Licensing Act 2003
Home Office Revised Guidance
to the Act 
Secondary Regulations
Southwark Statement of Licensing 
Policy Case file

Southwark Licensing 
c/o Community Safety & 
Enforcement
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH

Kirty Read
Phone number: 
020 7525 5748

APPENDICES

No. Title
Appendix A Copy of the transfer application
Appendix B Police objection
Appendix C Copy of the premises licence
Appendix D Trading Standards Review application – 15 June 2017 (Licensing Sub 

– Committee)
Appendix E Review Application – Licensing Sub – Committee Notice of Decision 

15 June 2017
Appendix F Licensing Officer Witness Statement
Appendix G Copy of Change of Designated Premises Supervisor application
Appendix H Map 

9



AUDIT TRAIL

Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Environment and Social 
Regeneration

Report Author Richard Kalu, Licensing Enforcement Officer
Version Final

Dated 28 July 2017
Key Decision? No
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER
Officer Title Comments sought Comments included
Director of Law and Democracy Yes Yes
Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance 

No No

Cabinet Member No No
Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 28 July 2017

10



APPENDIX A
11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



The Licensing Unit Metropolitan Police Service 

Floor 3 Licensing Office 

160 Tooley Street Southwark Police Station, 

London 

SE1 2QH 323 Borough High Street, 

LONDON, 

SE1 1JL 

 

 Tel:     020 7232 6756 

Email: SouthwarkLicensing@met.police.uk 

 

  Our reference: MD/21/ 2986/17 

    

    Date: 13th July 2017 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

 

Re: Adams News 6 Coldharbour Lane SE5 9PR 

 

Police are in possession of an application from the above to transfer 

the premises licence ref 852931 

 

The above premises was subject of an application for a review of the 

premises licence under the licensing act 2003. 

 

On Thursday the 15th June 2017 the licensing subcommittee heard 

evidence from the responsible authorities regarding a catalogue of 

APPENDIX B
25



breaches of the premises licence, and evidence of a number of criminal 

offences. The recommendation from all responsible authorities involved 

was that the premises licence be revoked. The Licensing sub committee 

took the decision to revoke the premises licence. The premises licence 

holder has appealed this decision. 

 

On the 30th June 2017 an application was received from xxxxxxx 

to transfer the above premises licence. Under the licensing 

act 2003 an application to transfer the premises licence can become 

effective immediately. In addition an application to vary the premises 

licence to specify Mr xxxxxxxx as the designated premises supervisor 

was also received. 

 

On this occasion I have been made aware that a visit was made to the 

premises on the 11th July 2017, 11 days after the transfer took 

effect. The purpose of this visit was to conduct a licensing induction 

with the new premises licence holder Mr xxxxxxxxxxxx. 

 

Prior to this visit Mr xxxxxx had been asked to ensure he had a copy 

of the lease agreement, and any other transfer documents which would 

indicate that he had legitimate control of the premises. This 

documentation was not forthcoming during the visit, Mr xxxxxxx stated 

that his Solicitors were dealing with this matter and no lease had 

been signed yet. 

 

Also present during this visit and induction meeting was the owner of 

the premises Mr xxxxxxx. It should also be noted that Mr xxxxxxxx 

26



has also been witnessed working behind the counter of the shop, on 

questioning he stated that he works for free. We ask the question why 

he would be working for free in a shop that he owns but rents out to 

Mr xxxxxxxx. 

I am of the opinion that Mr xxxxxxx does not at this time have 

legitimate control of the premises, there is no signed lease agreement 

in place and as yet no further documentation to indicate that this 

would be the case. 

 

At the conclusion of this meeting, a licensing officer from Southwark 

Council noticed that a number of cans of Zubr lager displayed for 

sale. The information displayed on the cans was not English. This is a 

clear breach of the food labelling regulations as explained in more 

detail in the attached warning letter sent to Mr xxxxxxxxx. This in my 

opinion demonstrates disregard for licensing objectives and indicates 

that Mr xxxxxxx is not an appropriate person to take on this premises 

licence. 

 

In my opinion there are sufficient exceptional circumstances for us to 

object to the transfer of this premises licence, the same evidence is 

appropriate to object to the application to vary the premises licence 

to specify Mr xxxxxxxxx as the designated premises supervisor. 

Submitted for consideration 

 

Ian Clements PC 362MD 

Southwark Police Licensing Unit 

Tel:   0207 232 6756 

27



Page 1 of 8 

Premises licence number    852931 

   Part 1 - Premises details  

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description  

ADAMS NEWS 
6 Coldharbour Lane 

Ordnance survey map reference (if applicable): 176502532503 
Post town 
London 

Post code  
SE5 9PR 

Telephone number 
020 7738 4983 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

The opening hours of the premises 

For any non standard timings see Annex 2 

Monday     00:00 - 00:00 
Tuesday    00:00 - 00:00 
Wednesday  00:00 - 00:00 
Thursday  00:00 - 00:00 
Friday   00:00 - 00:00 
Saturday         00:00 - 00:00 
Sunday    00:00 - 00:00 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies 
Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities 
For any non standard timings see Annex 2 of the full premises licence 

Sale by retail of alcohol to be consumed off premises 
Monday     00:00 - 00:00 
Tuesday         00:00 - 00:00 
Wednesday  00:00 - 00:00 
Thursday        00:00 - 00:00 
Friday         00:00 - 00:00 
Saturday            00:00 - 00:00 
Sunday          00:00 - 00:00 

Regulatory Services 
Licensing Unit 

Hub 1, 3rd Floor 
PO Box 64529 

London, SE1P 5LX

APPENDIX C
28



Page 2 of 8 

Part 2 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence  

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

Name, address and  telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol  
Licence No.:05/02106/LIPERS 
Authority: L.B of Croydon 

Licence Issue date 22/06/2016 

Head of Regulatory Services 
Hub 2, 3rd Floor 

PO Box 64529 
London, SE1P 5LX 

020 7525 5748 
licensing@southwark.gov.uk

29



Page 3 of 8 

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions  

100 No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence - 

a.At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or 

b.At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his  Personal 

Licence is suspended 

101 Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by, a person who 

holds a Personal Licence 

488 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must  ensure that an age verification 

policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply of 

alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or 

such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, 

identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either 

(a) a holographic mark; or 

(b) an ultraviolet feature. 

491 1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 

2. For the purpose of the condition set out in paragraph (1):

(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liqour Duties Act 1979; 

(b) "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula 

P = D + (D x V), 

where- 

(i) P is the permitted price, 

(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of 

the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 

(c) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence - 

(i) the holder of the premises licence: 

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence; or 

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence; 

(iv) "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises 

certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the 

member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

(v)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994. 

30



Page 4 of 8 

 

3. Where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not be 

a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually 

given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a day 

("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 

change to the rate of duty or value added tax; 

(2) the permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take 

place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day. 

 

31



Page 5 of 8 

 Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule  

  
124 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied except during the permitted hours. In this condition the permitted 

hours means the hours stated on the licence. 

125 Alcohol shall not be sold in an open container or be consumed in the licensed premises 

127 Alcohol shall not be sold or supplied unless it is paid for before or at the time when it is sold or supplied, 

except alcohol sold or supplied: 

a.With and for consumption at a meal supplied at the same time, consumed with the meal and paid for 

together w ith the meal; 

b.For consumption by a person residing in the premises or his guest and paid for together with his 

accommodation; 

c.To a canteen or mess 

163 All escape routes and exits including external exits shall be maintained unobstructed, in good order with 

non- slippery and even surfaces, free of trip hazards and clearly identified in accordance with the approved 

arrangements. 

172 The Licensee shall ensure that an adequate and appropriate supply of first aid equipment and materials 

is available on the premises 

255 a.Fire extinguishers and equipment as approved by the Council shall be efficiently maintained in 

satisfactory working order and kept available for instant use.  They shall be in the charge of a suitable 

person specially nominated for the purpose. 

b.Portable fire extinguishers shall be examined at least once a year and periodically tested in accordance 

with the current British Standard by a competent person and the date of such test shall be clearly marked on 

the appropriate extinguishers or on stout tabs securely attached to them.  Extinguishers which incorporate 

an antifreeze agent shall be examined and recharged in compliance with manufacturer's instructions. 

c.Where provided hydraulic hose reels shall be tested once a year to check that they are in w orking order 

and produce a satisfactory jet of water, and the test shall be recorded in a log book. 

d.All testing of fire extinguishers and equipment shall be at the expense of the licensee. 

288 That the CCTV system installed upon the premises shall be maintained in good working condition and 

operable at all times 

289 That recordings taken by the CCTV system installed upon the premises shall be kept and made 

available for inspection by authorised officers for a period of thirty one (31) days 

310 That all external doors / windows (excepting any that may be required to be locked open for public 

safety) shall be kept shut and under strict management supervision and allow access and egress between 

times that door staff are required 

311 That notices shall be made requesting that customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner 

334 That an age identification scheme shall be established and maintained. The scheme shall Require the 

production of evidence of age (comprising any PASS accredited card or passport or driving licence) from 

any person appearing to staff engaged in selling or  supplying alcohol to be under the age of 18 and who is 

32



Page 6 of 8 

attempting to buy alcohol 

336 A personal licence holder shall be on the premises at all times that intoxicating liquor is supplied 

340 That those sales after 12 midnight are conducted through a secure window which prevents customers 

entering the premises 

33



Page 7 of 8 

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority   

 
 

34



Page 8 of 8 

Annex 4 - Plans - Attached 

Licence No. 852931 

Plan No. N/A 

Plan Date July 2005 

35



APPENDIX D
36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 
 
 

NOTICE OF DECISION 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 15 JUNE 2017 
 

LICENSING ACT 2003: ADAMS NEWS, 6 COLDHARBOUR LANE, LONDON SE5 9PR 
 
1.  That the Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee, having considered an application made under 

Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 by the council’s trading standards service for the review 
of the premises licence issued in respect of the premises known as Adams News, 6 
Coldharbour Lane, London SE5 9PR and having had regard to all other relevant 
representations has decided  it necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives to:  
 

 Revoke the licence 
  
2 Reasons for the Decision. 

 
 The reasons for this decision are as follows: 
  
 The Licensing Sub-Committee heard from the Trading Standards Officer, the applicant for the 

review. They advised that on 8 December 2016 trading standards carried out a joint visit with 
police from Southwark’s night time economy team (NTET) to check compliance with the 
premise licence, trading standards legislation and other criminality such as employing illegal 
workers.  
 
On entering the premises it was discovered that the male behind the serving counter did not 
hold a personal licence, in breach of condition 336.  Another member of staff was arrested as 
he was an Indian national who had entered this country illegally. 
 
Officers examining the stock found a significant quantity of duty diverted spirits which could 
not be legally sold because duty had not been paid.  The illegal alcohol found was namely: 11 
x 35cl bottles of Glen’s vodka, 12 x 70cl bottles of High Commissioner whisky and 6 x 1 litre 
bottles of Glen’s vodka.  The total duty and VAT therefore evaded for these spirits amounted 
to £234.14 
 
Also offered for sale were super strength beers, which are almost exclusively consumed by 
people who have serious alcohol dependency problems and contain a high number of units of 
alcohol per can. H.M. Government seeks to use price as part of its strategy to reduce 
consumption of these super strength beers, and introduced the mandatory condition 491. All 
the super strength beers were being sold nominally above the duty rate.  Suspicious that 
these drinks were also subject to some form of evaded duty or other illegality, trading 
standards required the Premises Licence Holder to produce his purchase invoices for the 
super strength beers as well as for the seized spirits.  Illegal novelty lighters were also seized. 
 
Other breaches of the licence conditions were found, namely condition 225 (Maintenance of 
fire extinguishers) and condition 311 (customer notices). 
 

 NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 15 JUNE 2017 
 

APPENDIX E
61



 The Premises Licence Holder was interviewed under caution on 12 December 2016 and said 
he purchased the drinks from a cash and carry and produced seven invoices, 2 of which were 
dated after the visit. The remaining 5 invoices were dated May 2016 and none showed the 
purchases for the strong beers or bottles of Glen’s. Concerning the novelty lighters, the 
Premises Licence Holder admitted someone came into the premises offering them for sale 
and he bought some but did not get any paperwork.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
 
On 16/17 December 2016 a further visit was made to the premise. The premises were 
observed from immediately across the road from 23.50.  The premises door was open and no 
attempt was made to close the front door at midnight and only make sales through the secure 
window as per the condition on the licence. Numerous customers entered and left the shop.  
 
At 00:26 the officer entered the shop and picked up a can of Special Brew (8% ABV) and 
purchased it for £1.50. None of the super strength beers were priced. The officer then 
introduced himself and asked if he held a personal licence, which he did not.  The Personal 
Licence Holder/DPS came from the back of the shop but was unable to offer an explanation 
for the sale other than to say the shop was closed.  He stated that he had never used the 
secure window.  When challenged about the price of the Special Brew, he stated it should be 
£2.29 and that the price stickers must have come off. Admitting the price was £1.50 would 
have made it obvious to an enforcement officer that they had been sourced illegally. 
Throughout the conversation customers continued to enter the shop buying alcohol.  No steps 
to close the front door in breach of condition 340. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder was re-interviewed on 20 February 2017. He had failed to 
produce the invoices that were requested, stating the super strength beers came from the 
Cash and Carry; they delivered them to the shop and he paid for them in cash, but he did not 
get any invoices. He stated that one of the beers he had stocked (Oranjeboom (8.5% ABV)) 
he had obtained from a friend whose shop had closed. He was unable to say where his 
friend’s shop was. 
 
The Premises Licence Holder subsequently accepted a simple caution for having knowingly 
sold smuggled alcohol on his premise, failing to produce traceable invoices for the alcohol he 
was required to produce and for breaching condition 340 by allowing sales to take place 
inside the premise and not using the secure window. 
 
The officer also informed the committee that the Premises Licence Holder is also the 
Premises Licence Holder and DPS for a business approximately 300 metres from Adams 
News at, . The 
Premises Licence Holder had 3 months previously accepted simple cautions for 7 similar 
offences including: having imported spirits without payment of duty or which had otherwise 
been unlawfully imported, no personal licence holder on premise when alcohol was sold, 
under age sales.   
 
Further still, the premises licence holder had previously been the DPS for  

 between 2005 and June 2014 and again, similar issues 
arose including:- under 2 underage sales, counterfeit Bollinger Champagne being sold, sales 
beyond terminal hour, sale beyond terminal hour and the seller being the premises licence 
holder’s son (who was under 16 years old), illegal workers in shop and duty evaded spirits 
being sold.   
 
Trading Standards advised that they had no confidence whatsoever with the Premises 
Licence Holder and urged the Licensing Sub-Committee to revoke the licence. 

  

 

NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 15 JUNE 2017 

62



 The officer representing Licensing as a Responsible Authority addressed the Sub-Committee 
and stressed her concerns of the number and diversity of alleged criminal offences witnessed 
by Trading Standards Officers.  Furthermore, the Premises Licence Holder was associated 
with other premises, both in and outside Southwark where a plethora of breaches of licence 
conditions and similar criminal acts had occurred.  

  
 The Metropolitan Police Service representative advised that when granting an 

individual/company a premises licence, the Licensing Committee must have trust in that 
individual/company to run the premise well and comply with the operating schedule as agreed 
when the licence was applied for. The conditions are there for the promotion of the licencing 
objectives. The premises had operated in contravention of these conditions, but also 
committed acts of criminality.  In the circumstances, there is no place for a premises that is 
operated in such a way, that is putting the public’s health at risk and quite possibly having a 
negative impact on anti-social behaviour and crime and disorder.  The police recommended 
that the licence be revoked. 

  
 The Environmental Protection Officer addressed the sub-committee and stated that whilst 

there were no relevant records of public nuisance being caused directly by the premises, the 
warden service has dealt with persons linked to alcohol related anti-social behaviour over the 
last six months. They further stated that Camberwell has substantial problems with the on-
street population and this area has been a hot-spot of vulnerable persons, many with 
addiction issues, who are street drinking, begging, rough sleeping, and causing anti-social 
behaviour (public urination, violence, nuisance gatherings). The environmental protection 
team are of the view that the main reasons for the street nuisance is due to the provision of 
high strength lagers from nearby licensed premises, proximity to the Maudsley and Kings 
hospitals which include Accident and Emergency services and both alcohol and drug high 
dependency units, which are health services frequently used by the vulnerable persons who 
make up south east London’s street population. The officer recommended a revocation of the 
licence. 

  
 
 

The officer representing the Public Health Authority addressed the Sub-Committee.  They 
advised that they supported the review and also recommended that the premises licence be 
revoked.  The premises is located in an area where there is a serious problem with alcohol 
abuse, very close to Kings College Hospital where there are alcohol dependency treatment 
facilities and premises abusing their licence conditions in the way described, undermined the 
licensing objectives.  

  
 The representative for the licensee of the premises addressed the Sub-Committee. They 

advised that he did not contest the facts of the case.  He was an experienced licensee, who 
had 22 years of experience.  That said, he stood by what he said in interview, that he 
acquired the premises in 2016 and a considerable amount of the duty evaded stock was part 
of the old stock and was covered by the certificate of valuation.  The Oranjeboom was 
provided by a friend.  The illegal worker was not working in the shop and had nothing to do 
with the premises. Ultimately, the premises licence holder sought a final chance.  It would be 
unreasonable to revoke the licence and a substantial period of suspension, to allow for re-
training to take place could be justified in this case.  If the licence was not revoked, the 
licence holder accepted the need to reduce the sale of the super strength beers, but asked it 
be limited to ciders, beers (etc) of 5.5% ABV and also be allowed to sale alcohol until 02:00 
on Friday and Saturday. 

  

 

NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 15 JUNE 2017 

63



 The Licensing Sub-Committee considered all of the oral and written representations before it 
and found that the breaches of licence conditions and level of criminality completely 
unacceptable.  The premises licence holder demonstrated he was unwilling to cooperate with 
authorities in their criminal investigations and quite clearly undeterred by previous 
enforcement action at other premises.  He showed a total disregard to the consequences of 
selling alcohol responsibly and to adhering to premises licence conditions or promoting 
licensing objectives.  The Licensing Sub-Committee were unanimously of the opinion that the 
premises licence holder is not capable of running a licensed premises and promoting the 
licensing objectives and that the premises will continue to operate contrary to the terms and 
conditions of their premises licence. 
 

 Consideration was given to a suspension of the licence and removal of the premises licence 
holder as DPS, but it was felt that in this case this was not option, given that he is the owner 
of the premises, he is premises licence holder and will have a controlling factor over a new 
DPS.  If this Licensing Sub-Committee had the jurisdiction, it would have revoked the 
Premises Licence Holder’s personal licence.  It is fortunate to him, that this Sub-Committee 
do not have such power.  In the circumstances, the only option in this case is revocation. 

  
 In reaching this decision the Sub-Committee had regard to all the relevant considerations and 

the four licensing objectives and considered that this decision was appropriate and 
proportionate. 

  
3 Appeal Rights 

 
 This decision is open to appeal by either: 

 
a) The applicant for the review 
b) The premises licence holder 
c) Any other person who made relevant representations in relation to the application   
 
Such appeal must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices’ 
clerk for the Magistrates’ Court for the area within the period of 21 days beginning with the 
day on which the appellant was notified by this licensing authority of the decision. 
 

 This decision does not have effect until either 
 
a) The end of the period for appealing against this decision; or 
b) In the event of any notice of appeal being given, until the appeal is disposed of. 

  
 

Issued by the Constitutional Team on behalf of the Director of Legal Services 
 

Date: 15 June 2017 
 
 
 

 
  

 

NOTICE OF DECISION - LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE – 15 JUNE 2017 

64



APPENDIX F
65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



APPENDIX G
82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey (0)100019252. Land Registry Index data is subject to Crown copyright and is
reproduced with the permission of Land Registry.

APPENDIX H91



This page is intentionally blank.



 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017-18

NOTE: Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to 
Andrew Weir - Tel: 020 7525 7222

Name No of 
copies

Name No of 
copies

Members

Councillor Sunny Lambe
Councillor Lorraine Lauder MBE
Councillor Sandra Rhule

Reserve

Councillor Maria Linforth-Hall

1
1
1

By email

Officers

Debra Allday, legal team
Richard Kalu, licensing team
Alexander Lisowski, licensing team
Bill Masini, trading standards

Andrew Weir (spares)                      

Total printed copies: 

Dated:  1 August 2017

1
     1

1
1

      8

15


	Agenda
	6 Licensing Act 2003: Transfer Application Adam News, 6 Coldharbour Lane, London SE5 9PR
	Appendix A: Copy of the transfer application
	Appendix B: Police objection
	Appendix C: Copy of the premises licence
	Appendix D: Trading Standards Review application – 15 June 2017 (Licensing Sub – Committee)
	Appendix E: Review Application – Licensing Sub – Committee Notice of Decision 15 June 2017
	Appendix F: Licensing Officer Witness Statement
	Appendix G: Copy of Change of Designated Premises Supervisor application
	Appendix H: Map

	 
	Distribution list




